
 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

 

A G E N D A 
 

TOWN OF CHINCOTEAGUE 
 

April 5, 2010 - 6:00 P.M. - Council Chambers - Town Hall
 

 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
INVOCATION BY COUNCILMAN T. HOWARD 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

OPEN FORUM / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 

STAFF UP-DATE 
 

AGENDA ADDITIONS/DELETIONS AND ADOPTION: 
 
 
1. Consider Adoption of the Minutes  

• Regular Council Meeting of March 1, 2010            (Page 2 of 150) 
• Recessed Council Meeting of March 4, 2010            (Page 14 of 150) 
• Special Council Meeting of March 11, 2010           (Page 15 of 150) 

 
2. Presentation by Commander John J. Keegan Commanding Officer Surface Combat Systems 

Center (SCSC)                 (Page 18 of 150) 
 
3. Department of Forestry on Tree City USA, Arbor Day Ceremony (Rob Lewis)         (Page 19 of 150) 
 
4. Census Bureau Presentation and Proclamation                   (Page 71 of 150) 
 
5. Public Hearing Request to Vacate Subdivision Lot Lines (Gene W. & Stephanie Taylor)    (Page 74 of 150) 
               
6. Public Hearing Request to Vacate Subdivision Lot Lines (Shirley Lewis & Marvin and Florence Westpal)                              

        (Page 81 of 150) 
 

7. Public Hearing on the Ettinger Parcel Rezoning            (Page 93 of 150) 
 
8. Public Works Committee Report of March 2, 2010 (Mayor Tarr)                        (Page 136 of 150) 
 
9. Budget and Personnel Committee Report of March 9, 2010 (Councilwoman Conklin)       (Page 139 of 150) 
 
10. Review of the Planning Commissions By-Laws           (Page 140 of 150) 
 
11. Appointment of the Building Code of Appeals          (Page 146 of 150)  
      
12. Mayor & Council Announcements or Comments  
(Note: Roberts Rules do not allow for discussion under comment period) 
 
                                                                                                                                    
ADJOURN: 
 
G:\R Ritter\Council Agenda\04.05.10 Packet\REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 04.05.10.doc 



MINUTES OF THE MARCH 1, 2010 
CHINCOTEAGUE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

 
Council Members Present:
John H. Tarr, Mayor    John N. Jester, Vice-Mayor 
James Frese, Councilman   Nancy B. Conklin, Councilwoman 
Terry Howard, Councilman   John H. Howard, Councilman 
Ellen W. Richardson, Councilwoman 
 
Call to Order 
Mayor Tarr called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Invocation 
Councilman T. Howard offered the invocation. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Mayor Tarr led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

Open Forum / Public Participation 
Mayor Tarr opened the public forum. 
 
• Mrs. Peggy Thomas asked why Council changed the meeting time to 6:00 p.m.  She feels 
they have made a mistake by changing the time.   
 
Councilmen J. Howard and Frese explained the reason for the change. 
 
Mrs. Thomas again expressed her objection.   
 
Councilwoman Richardson stated that the 6:00 p.m. meeting is a hardship for her.   
 
Vice Mayor Jester and Councilwoman Conklin also commented on the reasons why it was 
moved earlier.   
 
• Mrs. Helen Birch remarked on the current assessments of her property.  She advised that 
she inquired about her taxes and wrote to the Board of Equalization for an appointment.  She 
asked why her taxes didn’t go down when she gave half of her property to her sons.   
 
Vice Mayor Jester explained that the waterfront lots were reassessed higher and her taxes didn’t 
go down. 
 
Mayor Tarr advised her that the Board of Equalization will schedule a hearing date and Mr. 
Hurdle would contact her. 
 
• Mrs. Helen Merritt feels there should be a doctor on call on the weekends.  She asked if 
Council could look into this for the Island. 
 

Page 2 of 150



• Mr. Joe Justice returned to Council for an update on the flood gates and drainage issues.   
 

 
Public Works Director Spurlock stated that Clark-Nexsen is in the process of gathering 
information. 
 
Mr. Justice expressed his need for urgency in the resolution of this matter. 
 
Mayor Tarr closed the Forum 
 
Staff Update 
Police Department 
Captain Robby Fisher handed Council the February Police Report.  He added that they ordered 
the bulletproof vests and they are due to arrive on Wednesday.  He announced a fund raiser that 
the Police Department is co-sponsoring with the Fire Department, a benefit dinner on May 7th, 
2010 for Mr. Jay Lewis who is in need of a pancreas and kidney transplant.  He added that they 
are sponsoring a poker-run to benefit Mr. Jay Lewis on May 8th also. 
 
Captain Fisher also announced that the officers will go to the elementary and high schools to 
promote the bicycle safety program.  They plan to conduct a DUI prevention/information 
program at the high school.  He stated that the Bike Rodeo is scheduled for May 8th.   
 
Vice Mayor Jester commented on the report of 911 calls being mostly wireless.  
 
Public Works Department
Public Works Director Spurlock stated that Clark-Nexsen has completed the survey for Pension 
Street, which will help in the drainage and grading plans.  He advised that they started working 
on Smith Street then on to Wayne Road and Horseshoe Drive.  They have started a computer 
water modeling program and should see results on that study within the next two weeks.   
 
Public Works Director Spurlock advised Council that the Harbor’s video surveillance system has 
been installed and they are waiting on DSL.  He stated that the skid-steer is scheduled to be 
delivered this week and the Ocean Boulevard extension survey is complete.  He added that the 
survey is in his office for review. 
 
Public Works Director Spurlock reported that snow removal has been the focus in February.  He 
cited three VDOT employees, Mr. Mark Rew, Mr. Delmas Taylor and Mr. Mike McCullough for 
their outstanding assistance during this time.  He stated that routine street sweeping and pothole 
repair continues along with drainage maintenance.  They are preparing to install whatever Clark-
Nexsen suggests with their study.  He also advised that routine water maintenance continues 
along with a new service installation on Stasio Lane.  The Water Department has completed the 
repairs of a major leak on Willow Street.  He advised that in March they will be installing all 
new services along Pension Street.   
 
Councilman T. Howard noticed the sidewalk work on Pension Street and appreciates the work 
being done.   

Page 3 of 150



 
Public Works Director Spurlock also added that he is waiting on the report from Clark-Nexsen 
so he can decide what to include in the paving contract. 
 
General Government
Town Manager Ritter reported that staff just completed the annual compliance mail-out.  This 
year in the mail-out was the Water Quality Report, FEMA letter on flood elevation, Emergency 
Operations letter and the Police Survey for accreditation.  He stated that Mrs. Chesser is still 
receiving and processing Business License renewals.  He advised that the 2nd notices for 
delinquent taxes and certified letters have been mailed.  He asked Council to review the 
Delinquent Tax Memo from Mrs. Hipple and suggested contacting her with any questions.  He 
stated that decals go on sale March 15th.  He added that the decals for all other municipalities in 
the county have arrived and are ready to pick up.  He also added that all accounts are in balance.  
He also reported that the supplemental bills have been processed and mailed.   
He reported on revenue for February. 
   Year to Date  Prior Year  Difference 
Real Estate  $594,776  $588,033  (up)  $  6,743  
Tangible Tax  $155,354  $164,617  (down)$  9,263 
Meals Tax  $376,358  $376,158  (up)  $     200 
Sales Tax  $  66,480  $  76,316  (down)$  9,836 
Transient Occupancy $508,360  $506,209  (up)  $  2,151 
Water Rent  $627,093  $586,017  (up) $41,076 
 
Town Manager Ritter stated that he went to Richmond with Harbor Master Merritt and Mr. Ernie 
Bowden on February 16th to get funding from the Port Authority for a grant for the fuel system.  
He also stated that he is currently working on the budget and advised that it will be ready by 
April 1st.  He will schedule budget hearings after the draft budget is completed.  He is also 
continuing the work on the Personnel Policy Hand Book.  Town Manager Ritter advised Council 
that the consulting firm is unable to make the scheduled meeting on Wednesday and asked to 
reschedule for Thursday at 10:00 a.m.   
 
Councilman J. Howard stated that the fuel system is coming from the Harbor Fund and not taxes. 
 
There was discussion regarding the reasons for the increase in some of the revenue categories.   
 
Town Planner Neville advised that the Planning Commission is working on the Work Plan and 
asked Council to provide ideas to him as to how to address drainage issues.  He advised that 
there is still a vacancy on the Building Code Board of Appeals and the advertisement has been 
reissued. 
 
Councilman Frese asked Town Planner Neville if he was working with Public Works Director 
Spurlock on the drainage.   
 
Town Planner Neville advised that he was.   
 
 

Page 4 of 150



Emergency Management
Mr. Bryan Rush reported that the Public Safety Committee will hold a Public Forum at 6:00 p.m. 
on March 17th.  He stated that they would like to advise the public of the new Emergency 
Operations Plan.  They will also have speakers and a lot of information to make the Island safer.  
They also want to promote the CERT program.   
 
Mr. Rush explained the current staffing of the Town’s Emergency Management Services.   
He reported the following: 
January 2010 – 47 calls for service; 26 ALS calls; 17 BLS calls; 4 fire services; 2 mutual aid 
calls which are when the ambulance is out on a call and Oak Hall came to assist with those calls.  
There were 30 transports to PRMC; 6 transports to SMH; there were some non-transports and 1 
cancelled call prior to their arrival. 
 
Mr. Rush reported that the average response time for January while fully staffed was 4.8 
seconds; partially staffed was 10.5 seconds; mainland response was 15.5 seconds. 
 
February 2010 – 44 calls for service; 21 ALS; 14 BLS; 6 fire calls; 3 public service calls; 2 
mutual aids where Oak Hall came to assist on those calls; 1 using the Maryland State Police 
Aviation; 2 responses where 1 was given to Pocomoke and 1 was given to Oak Hall, which was 
an accident and the other units transported; 21 transports to PRMC; 5 transports to SMH; 1 
DOA. 
 
Mayor Tarr asked Mr. Rush to explain the EMS transport policy. 
 
Mr. Rush advised that this area works under the Tidewater Emergency Medical Services 
Protocol.  He explained that it tells EMS personnel what they can and can’t do.  He informed 
Council that it states that the EMS will only transport patients to a fully licensed upstanding 
emergency room.  He stated that they cannot transport to just any facility.  He also explained the 
hours of the local medical facilities.  He advised that the EMS can assist in calling to get them 
seem by a local doctor but protocol will not allow EMS to transport them there only to an 
emergency room. 
 
Vice Mayor Jester asked if the summertime calls were double. 
 
Mr. Rush advised that they are. 
 
Vice Mayor Jester asked how many trained volunteers are running calls. 
 
Mr. Rush advised that there are 28 volunteers and 4 of those are ALS providers along with 
drivers. 
 
Councilman J. Howard stated that the public needs to know that the stock fell when Dr. Amrien 
died.  He added that the regulations and liabilities won’t allow a doctor to come out after hours 
like he used to do.  He doesn’t understand why they can’t. 
 
Mr. Rush stated, to make the practice appealing to expand the hours during the weekend.   

Page 5 of 150



 
Councilman J. Howard suggested that a Nonemergency Patient Care Facility would be fantastic 
here, especially during the summer.   
 
Councilman T. Howard stated that Council can’t give up. 
 
Councilwoman Richardson commended the EMS personnel for doing a wonderful job. 
 
Agenda Additions/Deletions and Adoption 
Mayor Tarr advised that he would like to add executive session to discuss the proposition of a 
business and legal matter with Town Attorney Poulson. 
 
Councilman T. Howard motioned, seconded by Councilwoman Richardson to approve the 
agenda with the addition of executive session.  Unanimously approved. 
 
1. Consider Adoption of the Minutes 

• Regular Council Meeting of February 1, 2010 
Councilman T. Howard motioned, seconded by Councilman Frese to approve the minutes of the 
Regular Council Meeting of February 1, 2010.  Unanimously approved. 
 
2. VDOT Bridge Update 
Mr. Tom Rakowski with VDOT stated that they are on schedule to open April 1, 2010.  He 
advised that the traffic pattern will have to change one more time for the completion of the ramp.  
He also reported that the bascule span is undergoing testing procedures and will be fully 
operational by the end of this week.  He reported that the traffic signal will be operational soon 
with the Opticon system, where the EMS can over-ride the system.  He also understands that 
there are several mobile homes waiting until the bridge is opened.   
 
Mr. Rakowski also reported that the changes for the landscaping have been done.  He was unable 
to get the paving of Main Street approved in the budget.  He also added that petition of the 
mainline is April 2nd, the completion of the line to Marsh Island is scheduled for August 26th and 
the swing-span demolition will be completed by December 13th.  He explained the options of 
demolition and removal of the swing-span bridge. 
 
Mr. Rakowski again explained the change in traffic pattern at the request of Councilman T. 
Howard. 
 
Mayor Tarr asked about an Open House. 
 
Mr. Rakowski stated that they can schedule a date where people can walk out on the new bridge 
before it is opened to vehicle traffic.  He suggested discussing it further next week when they 
meet again. 
 
Mayor Tarr asked Mr. Rakowski to review and set a date so the Town could advertise.  He also 
stated that there are requests to have pictures taken before the old bridge is demolished. 
 

Page 6 of 150



Vice Mayor Jester mentioned the mulch at the foot of the new bridge that ended up in the road 
because of the flooding.  He suggested stones instead. 
 
3. Healthcare Committee Report 
Mr. Bryan Rush, Chairman of the Healthcare Committee, gave his presentation.  He began 
explaining that the reason for the Committee was because the Town’s current health care was 
coming to an end.  He stated that over the months they have conducted surveys from other 
municipalities regarding health insurance plans and costs.  He added that in December United 
Healthcare notified the employees that the current health plan would cease June 30, 2010.   
 
Mr. Rush stated that they conducted further research with other insurance companies, employees 
who expressed their concerns, along with retirees and Council.  He stated that the employees’ 
concerns were out-of-pocket expenses such as higher premiums, co-pays and deductibles.  He 
explained in detail the Medicare Parts and their differences along with the “doughnut hole” 
expenses to the retiree.  He then looked into a supplement for the retirees.   
 
Mr. Rush also reviewed the current cost to the Town, projected cost to the Town along with 
possible solutions and recommendations to the “doughnut hole” expenses.  He also addressed 
those retirees 64 years old and younger.  He suggested that the Town pay the entire premium 
with a stipulation.  He explained the stipulation, that it is based on years of service for new hires.  
He suggested 25% of insurance premium paid by the Town for the first 5 years of employment.  
He stated that this would eliminate those new hires that are close to retirement age and the Town 
having to pay the full amount of premiums.   
 
Mr. Rush also stated that the active employee plan should include the out-of-state doctor 
component.   He stated that there are many plans to mix and match specific coverage.  He made 
recommendations to Council regarding budget amounts for premiums.  He mentioned utilizing 
an insurance broker.  He feels they should be knowledgeable, have bargaining power and work 
with the Town as a team.  Mr. Rush stated the Committee decided to ask a broker from USI.  He 
stated that they will communicate with the employees along with management of the accounts.  
He added that the strategy is planning to get the most for the money.   
 
Mr. Rush continued by pointing out the advantages of utilizing a consultant with USI.  He added 
that there is a new local office in Exmore.  He also stated that they have online access to the 
individual accounts and an insurance portal.  He reported that brokers are normally paid on a 
percentage from the healthcare provider and it is currently 3%.  He stated that if there is no 
broker the 3% is pocketed by the provider.  He added that in this case the percentage is built into 
the premium.  The Committee recommended appointing a broker and using USI, LLC as the 
Town’s broker.   
 
Mr. Rush summarized by reviewing the Committee’s recommendations: 

1. Save money, provide benefits and do it as efficiently as possible. 
2. Putting $30,000 for projected savings to cover the “doughnut hole” expenses of the 

retirees. 
3. Pay the retiree’s (from under 65) active employee rate – certain percentage per years of 

service. 

Page 7 of 150



4. Fund $525 per employee per month in the upcoming budget. 
5. Appoint USI, LLC as the Town’s broker. 

 
Councilman Frese asked what the current allowance for insurance is. 
 
Mr. Rush advised that it is $499. 
 
Mayor Tarr suggested tabling the questions and scheduling a workshop in the next 2-3 weeks to 
discuss this further.   
 
Mr. Rush stressed to Council that it is important to resolve this soon as the deadline approaches. 
 
Mayor Tarr thanked Mr. Rush on a good presentation and stated that he would get back to him.  
He reminded Council they would have about a week and a half to ask questions so they could 
move on this. 
 
Council concurred on a job well done. 
 
4. Consider 50% Match to Virginia Commission for the Arts Grant for $5,000 
Mr. Bob Behr, President of the Chincoteague Cultural Alliance, thanked the Town and staff for 
their assistance in the past.  He reviewed the schedule for the upcoming season.  He stated there 
are 30 events scheduled.  He requested that Council consider the 50% match of $5,000 so they 
would have a total of $10,000.  He added that they are a nonprofit organization and their staff is 
all volunteer.   
 
Councilman T. Howard stated that the current schedule is impressive and he applauded their hard 
work.  He feels it is money well spent. 
 
Vice Mayor Jester stated that there are an increasing number of attendances to the events.   
 
Mayor Tarr stated that if the grant comes in less the Town’s match would be less. 
 
Mr. Behr also added that the deadline is April 1, 2010. 
 
Councilman J. Howard motioned, Seconded by Councilwoman Conklin to approve the 50% 
match up to $5,000 to the Chincoteague Cultural Alliance for the Virginia Commission for the 
Arts grant.  Unanimously approved. 
 
5. Enterprise Zone Update 
Town Planner Neville reviewed the report he gave Council and stated that there is an April 1st 
deadline.  He stated that for any businesses or property owners that may qualify there are 2 
elements, a creation grant or real property investment grant.  He added that there is a benefit to 
participate.  He feels this is a good thing to offer and if Council feels this is worthwhile he can 
advertise on the website.  Town Planner Neville discussed other areas to possibly include in the 
program.  He stated there is an additional month if the Town wants to propose additional 
properties.  He suggested adding some Eastside properties because of aquaculture.   

Page 8 of 150



 
Mayor Tarr stated that the Town has to make a request to include any area to the Enterprise 
Zone.  He added that it doesn’t have to be Eastside, it could be anywhere. 
 
Town Planner Neville stated that they were removing properties that couldn’t benefit such as 
residential properties.   
 
Mayor Tarr added that years ago the area had to be contiguous and currently they do not.  He 
stated that we need to see if there are properties to be taken out and properties to add.   
 
Town Planner Neville stated that the Town would need to let the County know within the next 
several weeks.   
 
Mayor Tarr stated that Town Planner Neville will be working on the review of properties and 
bring it back to Council.   
 
6. Possible Adoption of the Wind Energy Ordinance 
Town Planner Neville explained that Town Attorney Poulson returned two versions.  He stated 
that one version would be on a conditional use permit and the other was special use and special 
exception permit.  He stated that there were also looking to adopt the minimum safety standards.   
 
Town Planner Neville also stated that the recommendation from the Commission is that the small 
Wind Energy System Ordinance with a conditional use version be adopted with a lower fee than 
the $1,500.  He feels this is ready for Council action this evening. 
 
Councilman Frese commented on the high fee. 
 
Town Planner Neville advised that the fees go for advertisements which run approximately $45 
per week and it runs for 2 weeks. 
 
Councilman T. Howard feels that the conditional use is the best way to go with a lesser fee. 
 
Vice Mayor Jester concurred. 
 
There was discussion regarding the fee and fee schedules along with the fee listed in the 
ordinance. 
 
Town Planner Neville stated that the Ordinance normally doesn’t give a specific fee amount. 
 
Mayor Tarr feels there needs to be consistency with the process.  He added that the fee doesn’t 
need to be less than the fee for a BZA appeal.  Discussion continued regarding the fees and the 
possible change in the future from conditional to special use. 
 
Councilman Frese made a motion to use the Wind Energy Ordinance with the “special 
exception” version of the ordinance.  There was no second, the motion died. 
 

Page 9 of 150



Vice Mayor Jester motioned, seconded by Councilwoman Conklin to approve the Wind Energy 
Ordinance with the “conditional use” version.   
Ayes: Jester, Conklin, T. Howard, J. Howard, Richardson 
Nays: Frese 
Motion Carried. 
 
Vice Mayor Jester motioned, seconded by Councilman T. Howard to approve the Wind Energy 
Ordinance conditional use fee of $450.00.  Unanimously approved. 
 
7. Update Planning Commission report on the Ettinger Rezoning Application 
Mr. Ray Rosenberger, Planning Commission Chairman, explained that there was a meeting 
between the Commission and the property owner.  He stated that Town Attorney Poulson was 
given information for his review.  He stated that they will continue the discussion further at the 
next Planning Commission meeting after they review the response from Town Attorney Poulson.   
 
Town Planner Neville stated he spoke with Mr. Ettinger and he met with the Oyster Bay II Board 
of  Directors and will be issuing a summary and response for the Commission to review. 
 
Councilman J. Howard motioned, seconded by Councilman T. Howard to extend the rezoning 
application for another 30 days.  Unanimously approved. 
 
8. Update of Home Occupation Regulations Ordinance 
Town Planner Neville stated that the Commission reviewed different Home Occupation 
Ordinances from different municipalities.  He advised that they have compiled a draft ordinance 
for review by Council. 
 
Vice Mayor Jester asked about the parking requirements for those home occupations that didn’t 
require a space.   
 
Councilman J. Howard feels it’s too much for certain home occupations.  He feels that a home 
occupation with several signs, flags and visiting customers in a residential area doesn’t belong.  
He added that it’s too flashy for the Island. 
 
There was further discussion regarding the sign ordinance. 
 
Town Planner Neville asked if Council wanted the Commission to clean up the Ordinance in that 
sense.   
 
Lengthy discussion continued and Council feels there should be some constancy and separation 
of the home occupation in a residential area as opposed to those in a commercial area.   
 
Mayor Tarr asked if this item would be on the agenda for the Planning Commission. 
 
 
 
9. Update of the Sign Ordinance on Political Signs 

Page 10 of 150



Town Attorney Poulson stated that he needs to address campaign signs and removable signs.  He 
stated that there may be some provisions regarding political signs which may be different than 
political campaign signs.   
 
Mayor Tarr feels that the Ordinance isn’t quite right. 
 
Town Attorney Poulson explained that under the First Amendment Rights the Town can do some 
restricting.  He added that the Town can’t do more restricting than they can with other signs.  He 
also explained the differences between political signs and political campaign signs.  He stated 
that he sees no reason why a political campaign sign should remain up 90 days after the election. 
 
Mayor Tarr asked Town Attorney Poulson if he would check into this further.   
 
10. Public Safety Committee Report of February 2, 2010 
Mayor Tarr stated that most of the report was reviewed by Mr. Rush.  He asked if there were any 
questions.  He added that there will be a draft of the Emergency Notification System Plan.   
 
There was a question as to the emergency call-out to cell phone numbers. 
 
Mayor Tarr advised that the call-out can go to any number.  He suggested going onto the website 
and submitting the information. 
 
11. Cemetery Committee Report of February 4, 2010 
Councilwoman Richardson stated that they are planning a cleanup day at the School Street 
Cemetery and Taylor Cemetery on March 13th, with a rain date of March 20th.   
 
Mayor Tarr suggested advertising on Channel 9 and in the paper.   
 
Councilwoman Richardson invited anyone who wanted to help. 
 
12. Apply to USDA, Community Facilities Grant for a Vehicle Mobile Data Terminal  

Project 
Town Planner Neville stated that he has worked with the Police Department on this grant and 
there is a match to be approved by Council.  He stated that there is no deadline.  He added that 
this will be placed on the schedule for the upcoming budget.  He stated that this terminal will 
help the police obtain information from the databases allowing communications by means other 
than the public airways.  He informed Council that the total amount of grant is $70,000 with a 
75% ($52,500) contribution from the USDA.  He added that they are looking for a local match of 
25% ($17,500). 
 
Mayor Tarr asked if there are any operating costs associated with this system. 
 
Town Planner Neville advised that the setup and training is included in a one year service and 
the terminals work through the current server the Police Department already uses.   
 

Page 11 of 150



Councilman Frese motioned, seconded by Vice Mayor Jester to adopt a resolution to authorize 
the application to the USDA for the Community Facilities Grant to purchase a Vehicle Mobile 
Data Terminal.  Unanimously approved. 
 
13. Mayor & Council Announcements or Comments 
Councilman T. Howard stated that he went to the Elementary School to read to the children and 
spoke with Mrs. Olsen.  They are concerned about the budget cuts to the school.  He read a 
statement that he would like Council to agree to send to our state and local representatives.   
 
Mayor Tarr strongly urged Council to attend the County’s budget hearings and meetings. 
 
Vice Mayor Jester commended the Public Works Department on the work they’ve completed in 
February.   
 
Councilman J. Howard asked about the parking issues at the beach. 
 
Mayor Tarr stated that he spoke with Mr. Lou Hinds and was advised that they have a Plan and 
are hoping to have a public meeting in April to review it.  He also added that the Park Service 
Superintendent was here about the parking spaces. 
 
Councilman J. Howard also mentioned looking into the Town’s property on LeKites Drive and 
wants to know the options. 
 
Councilwoman Richardson asked about the sidewalk at the foot of the new bridge.  She would 
like to see the sidewalk extended north of the Hurdle property toward the Jester property 
connecting to the existing sidewalk.  She feels it would be safer. 
 
Public Works Director Spurlock advised he would look into the matter further and gather 
information regarding expense and right-of-way.   
 
Mayor Tarr stated that he attended the County’s budget workshop.  He advised Council that they 
are proposing to cut the Town’s tipping fees.  He also stated that they have done away with the 
decals.  He explained that if the personal property taxes aren’t paid they will not be able to renew 
their tags or licenses through the DMV.  He commented that this makes it hard on our officers 
and may be something the Town should review in the future.   
 
Mayor Tarr reminded Council of their meeting with Springstead on Thursday. 
 

14. Closed Meeting in Accordance with Section 2.2-3711(A)(1)&(5) of the Code of 
Virginia. 

• Discussion of the Award of a Public Contract 
Councilman Frese moved, seconded by Councilman T. Howard to convene a closed meeting under 
Section 2.2-3711(A)(1)&(5) of the Code of Virginia to discuss the award of a public contract. 
Unanimously approved. 
 

Page 12 of 150



Councilman Frese moved, seconded by Councilwoman Conklin to reconvene in regular session.  
Unanimously approved. 
 
Councilman Frese moved, seconded by Councilwoman Richardson to adopt a resolution of 
certification of the closed meeting.   
  
WHEREAS, the Chincoteague Town Council has convened a closed meeting on this date pursuant 
to an affirmative recorded vote and in accordance with the provisions of the Virginia Freedom of 
Information Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 2.2-3711(A)(1)(5) of the Code of Virginia requires a certification by this 
Town Council that such closed meeting was conducted in conformity with Virginia law; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Chincoteague Town Council hereby certifies 
that to the best of each member's knowledge, (i) only public business matters lawfully exempted 
from open meeting requirements by Virginia law were discussed in the closed meeting to which this 
certification resolution applies, and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified in the 
motion convening the closed meeting were heard, discussed or considered by the Town Council. 
 
VOTE:  Ayes- Frese, T. Howard, Richardson, J. Howard, Jester, Conklin 
  Nays – None 
 
RECESS 
Councilman T. Howard motioned, seconded by Councilwoman Richardson to recess the meeting 
until Thursday, March 4th, 2010.  Unanimously approved. 
 
 
_____________________________    ___________________________ 
Mayor        Attest: Town Manager 

Page 13 of 150



MINUTES OF THE MARCH 4, 2010 
CHINCOTEAGUE TOWN COUNCIL RECESSED MEETING 

 
Council Members Present:
John H. Tarr, Mayor    John N. Jester, Vice-Mayor 
James Frese, Councilman   Nancy B. Conklin, Councilwoman 
Terry Howard, Councilman   John H. Howard, Councilman 
Ellen W. Richardson, Councilwoman 
 
Call to Order 
Mayor Tarr called the meeting to order at 10:03 a.m. 
 
Invocation 
Councilman T. Howard offered the invocation. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Mayor Tarr led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

1. Closed Meeting in Accordance with Section 2.2-3711(A)(6) of the Code of Virginia. 
• Discussion with consultants pertaining to actual or probable litigation. 

Councilman Frese moved, seconded by Vice Mayor Jester to convene a closed meeting under 
Section 2.2-3711(A)(6) of the Code of Virginia to discuss with consultants pertaining to actual 
or probable litigation. Unanimously approved. 
 
Councilman Frese moved, seconded by Councilwoman Richardson to reconvene in regular 
session.  Unanimously approved. 
 
Councilman T. Howard moved, seconded by Councilman Frese to adopt a resolution of 
certification of the closed meeting.   
  
WHEREAS, the Chincoteague Town Council has convened a closed meeting on this date 
pursuant to an affirmative recorded vote and in accordance with the provisions of the Virginia 
Freedom of Information Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 2.2-3711(A)(6) of the Code of Virginia requires a certification by this 
Town Council that such closed meeting was conducted in conformity with Virginia law; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Chincoteague Town Council hereby certifies 
that to the best of each member's knowledge, (i) only public business matters lawfully exempted 
from open meeting requirements by Virginia law were discussed in the closed meeting to which 
this certification resolution applies, and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified 
in the motion convening the closed meeting were heard, discussed or considered by the Town 
Council. 
 
VOTE:  Ayes- Frese, T. Howard, Richardson, J. Howard, Jester, Conklin 
  Nays – None 

Adjourn 
Vice Mayor Jester motioned, seconded by Councilman Frese to adjourn the meeting.  Unanimously 
approved. 
 
_____________________________    ___________________________ 
Mayor        Attest: Town Manager 

Page 14 of 150



MINUTES OF THE MARCH 11, 2010 
CHINCOTEAGUE TOWN COUNCIL RECESSED MEETING 

 
Council Members Present:
John H. Tarr, Mayor    John N. Jester, Vice-Mayor 
James Frese, Councilman   Nancy B. Conklin, Councilwoman 
Terry Howard, Councilman   John H. Howard, Councilman 
Ellen W. Richardson, Councilwoman 
 
Call to Order 
Mayor Tarr called the meeting to order at 10:07 a.m. 
 
Invocation 
Councilman T. Howard offered the invocation. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Mayor Tarr led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Agenda Additions/Deletions and Adoption 
Councilman Frese motioned, seconded by Councilwoman Richardson to approve the agenda.  
Unanimously approved. 
 

1. Closed Meeting in Accordance with Section 2.2-3711(A)(6)&(7) of the Code of 
Virginia. 

• Consideration of the Investment of Public Funds 
• Legal Matters – Probable Litigation 

Councilwoman Conklin moved, seconded by Councilman Frese to convene a closed meeting under 
Section 2.2-3711(A)(6)&(7) of the Code of Virginia to discuss the award of a public contract. 
Unanimously approved. 
 
Councilman T. Howard moved, seconded by Councilman Frese to reconvene in regular session.  
Unanimously approved. 
 
Councilman T. Howard moved, seconded by Councilman Frese to adopt a resolution of certification 
of the closed meeting.   
  
WHEREAS, the Chincoteague Town Council has convened a closed meeting on this date pursuant 
to an affirmative recorded vote and in accordance with the provisions of the Virginia Freedom of 
Information Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 2.2-3711(A)(6)&(7) of the Code of Virginia requires a certification by this 
Town Council that such closed meeting was conducted in conformity with Virginia law; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Chincoteague Town Council hereby certifies 
that to the best of each member's knowledge, (i) only public business matters lawfully exempted 
from open meeting requirements by Virginia law were discussed in the closed meeting to which this 

Page 15 of 150



certification resolution applies, and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified in the 
motion convening the closed meeting were heard, discussed or considered by the Town Council. 
 
VOTE:  Ayes- Frese, T. Howard, Richardson, J. Howard, Jester, Conklin 
  Nays – None 
 
2. Discussion on Healthcare and the Committee’s Recommendation 
Mr. Rush explained that the Reason the Committee decided to go with USI is that they had a lot 
of resources that would help the Town come up with better rates.  He also added that the broker 
will meet with the Town regularly.   
 
Councilwoman Conklin asked if that particular broker worked with the Town previously with the 
current insurance company. 
 
Mr. Rush advised that she was employed with the current insurance company but not as a 
Broker.   
 
Town Manager Ritter added that the Town was with VACO and they were our broker and in 
2006-2007 VACO was no longer in that business.  He added that the Town has not used a broker 
since. 
 
Councilwoman Conklin asked how much a broker would cost. 
 
Mr. Rush advised that it will not cost the Town anything.  He stated that the Town has been 
paying 3% for years and not utilizing a broker which is included in the premium.  He added that 
the 3% fee going straight into the insurance company’s pocket. 
 
Councilman Frese asked if USI was nationwide. 
 
Mr. Rush advised they are considered #8 nationwide.   
 
Councilman J. Howard motioned, seconded by Councilman Frese for the Town to go ahead with 
USI, LLC as the Broker for healthcare.  Unanimously approved. 
 
Councilman Frese complimented Mr. Rush and the Committee for a good job. 
 
Mr. Rush thanked Council and advised that the Committee will continue to work out plans and 
prices. 
 
3. Broadband update 
Mrs. Edwards explained the contract process.   
 
There was discussion regarding the contract details, process along with the collateral 
information.  Mrs. Edwards explained that the Town will have to put up a $100,000 certificate of 
deposit for the DHCD to hold as collateral for their portion of the grant.  Discussion continued 
about the VEC requirement. 

Page 16 of 150



 
Mayor Tarr stated that the Town will be required to put another $100,000 in Virginia 
Community Capital to be held in a money market account for approximately 30 months for 
collateral for the project. 
 
Mrs. Edwards stated that they will release that collateral as soon as the 20 jobs are registered 
through the VEC. 
 
Town Manager Ritter asked Council for permission to get the $100,000 CD for the DHCD 
requirement.  He also suggested having another Council meeting on the 22nd or 23rd to review 
any changes to the contract.   
 
Councilman Frese motioned, seconded by Councilman T. Howard to approve the purchase of a 
$100,000 Certificate of Deposit to use as the collateral for the Broadband Project.  Unanimously 
approved. 
 
4. Request to Send a Letter to the Board of Supervisors on the Eastern Shore Tourism 
Mayor Tarr advised that there is a request from Mr. Steve Potts with the Eastern Shore Tourism 
Committee to send a letter to the Board of Supervisors regarding a cut of funds for the upcoming 
budget.   
 
Vice Mayor Jester added that the Board of Supervisors is trying to put as much to the schools 
budget as possible because of the cut in state funds.  He stated that they have made cuts 
everywhere including 20 employees. 
 
Discussion continued regarding the cuts. 
 
Mayor Tarr feels that Chincoteague should promote tourism.  He added that the County should 
be supporting tourism also.   
 
Vice Mayor Jester advised with the cuts the Eastern Shore Chamber will not be able to remain 
open 12 months out of the year. 
 
Councilman J. Howard motioned, seconded by Councilwoman Conklin to ask Mr. Steve Potts to 
speak with Supervisor Thornton and after that meeting if the Commission if necessary and 
Council still wishes, compose a letter of support.  Unanimously approved. 
 
Adjournment 
Councilwoman Richardson motioned, seconded by Councilman T. Howard to adjourn the 
meeting.  Unanimously approved. 
 
 
_____________________________    ___________________________ 
Mayor        Attest: Town Manager 
 

Page 17 of 150



 
 

COMMANDER JOHN J. KEEGAN 
COMMANDING OFFICER 

SURFACE COMBAT SYSTEMS CENTER (SCSC) 
WALLOPS ISLAND, VA 

 
Commander Keegan, originally from East Northport, NY,  
received his commission in May 1990 upon graduation from  
Villanova University with a Bachelor of Electrical Engineering  
(BEE) degree.   

 
  His initial assignment following commissioning and attendance  
at SWOS (Division Officer Course) was Prospective Auxiliaries  
Officer of Pre-commissioning Unit ASHLAND (LSD 48).  Upon  
ASHLAND’s commissioning in May 1992, CDR Keegan served  
as Auxiliaries Officer, M-Division Officer and eventually, as  
Combat Information Center.  CDR Keegan’s next assignment, in  
December 1994, was Pre-commissioning Unit PELICAN (MHC 53) 
as the Prospective Operations Officer.  He served as PELICAN’s  
Operations Officer upon her commissioning in August 1995 until  
June 1997 when he transferred to Department Head School.  Following graduation from 
Department Head School in February 1998, he reported to USS DEFENDER (MCM 2) as 
Chief Engineer.   
 
  Selected for lateral transfer to the Engineering Duty Officer (EDO) community in 
November 1998, CDR Keegan continued to serve as Chief Engineer on DEFENDER until 
March 2000.  Upon his relief, he reported in April 2000 as a student at the Naval 
Postgraduate School in Monterey, CA in the Naval/Mechanical Engineering curriculum.  
Graduating in June 2002 with a Masters of Science in Mechanical Engineering (MSME), he 
attended the EDO Basic Course and reported to the Supervisor of Shipbuilding, Conversion 
and Repair (SUPSHIP), Pascagoula, Mississippi in September 2002.   During this tour, CDR 
Keegan witnessed the merger of SUPSHIP Pascagoula and SUPSHIP New Orleans into 
SUPSHIP Gulf Coast, completed his Engineering Duty Qualification and served as the Test 
Officer during construction of LHD 8 and LPD 19.  In October 2004, CDR Keegan reported 
for duty at Program Executive Office (PEO) Ships in the Program Office for Support Ships, 
Boats and Craft (PMS-325) as the Acquisition Manager for the Joint High Speed Vessel 
(JHSV) program, a billet he held until October 2005 when he became the Assistant Program 
Manager (APM) for the Mobile Landing Platform (MLP), a key enabler of the Maritime 
Prepositioning Force (Future) [MPF(F)].  In January 2007, CDR Keegan reported to Navy 
Personnel Command as the Assistant Engineering Duty Officer Detailer (PERS-445B). 
 
  CDR Keegan became the 10th Commanding Officer of the Surface Combat Systems Center 
(SCSC), Wallops Island, Virginia in November 2008. 

 
  CDR Keegan is an Acquisition Corps (AC) member and DAWIA certified Level III in 
Program Management and Level II in Systems Engineering and Production, Quality 
Assurance and Manufacturing.  A member of the American Society of Naval Engineers 
(ASNE), he served as the Monterey Peninsula Section Chairman during 2001 and was named 
the Society’s 2001 Recruiter of the Year.  He is a registered Professional Engineer 
(Mechanical) in the state of California.  CDR Keegan also holds a Masters of Business 
Administration (MBA) degree from the University of Texas at Tyler.  
 
  CDR Keegan is married to the former Susan Lewis of Pottstown, PA.  They reside on 
Chincoteague Island, VA with their two daughters, Caitlin (1997) and Caroline (2000). 
 

Page 18 of 150



Page 19 of 150



Page 20 of 150



Page 21 of 150



Page 22 of 150



Page 23 of 150



Page 24 of 150



Page 25 of 150



Page 26 of 150



Page 27 of 150



Page 28 of 150



Page 29 of 150



Page 30 of 150



Page 31 of 150



Page 32 of 150



Page 33 of 150



Page 34 of 150



Page 35 of 150



Page 36 of 150



Page 37 of 150



Page 38 of 150



Page 39 of 150



Page 40 of 150



Page 41 of 150



Page 42 of 150



Page 43 of 150



Page 44 of 150



Page 45 of 150



Page 46 of 150



Page 47 of 150



Page 48 of 150



Page 49 of 150



Page 50 of 150



Page 51 of 150



Page 52 of 150



Page 53 of 150



Page 54 of 150



Page 55 of 150



Page 56 of 150



Page 57 of 150



Page 58 of 150



Page 59 of 150



Page 60 of 150



Page 61 of 150



Page 62 of 150



Page 63 of 150



Page 64 of 150



Page 65 of 150



Page 66 of 150



Page 67 of 150



Page 68 of 150



Page 69 of 150



Page 70 of 150



Page 71 of 150



Page 72 of 150



 

 

 

WHEREAS an accurate census count is vital to our community and residents’ well-being by helping 
planners determine where to locate schools, day care centers, roads and public transportation, 
hospitals and other facilities, and achieving an accurate and complete count of the nation’s growing 
and changing population;  

WHEREAS more than $400 billion per year in federal and state funding is allocated to states and 
communities based, in part, on census data; 

WHEREAS census data help determine how many seats each state will have in the U.S. House of 
Representatives and often is used for the redistricting of state legislatures, county and city councils 
and voting districts; 

WHEREAS the 2010 Census creates jobs that stimulate economic growth and increase 
employment; 

WHEREAS the information collected by the census is confidential and protected by law; 

 

Now, therefore, we PROCLAIM that the Town of Chincoteague, Incorporated is committed to 
partnering with the U.S. Census Bureau to help ensure a full and accurate count in 2010.  

As a 2010 Census partner, we will: 

1. Support the goals and ideals for the 2010 Census and disseminate 2010 Census 
information to encourage those in our community to participate. 

2. Encourage people in our community to place an emphasis on the 2010 Census and 
participate in events and initiatives that will raise overall awareness and ensure a full and 
accurate census. 

3. Support census takers as they help our community complete an accurate count. 

4. Create or seek opportunities to collaborate with other like-minded groups in our community 
by participating in Complete Count Committees and/or utilizing high-profile, trusted voices 
to advocate on behalf of the 2010 Census. 

Signed this 5th day of April, in the year 2010. 

Signature 

Title    Mayor 

Town of Chincoteague 

 

 

Page 73 of 150



To: 

From: 

Date: 

Sueject: 

MEMORANDUM 

Robert Ritter, Tomn Manager 
s-, 

Kenny E. Lewis, Zoning Administralo y9 pi 

February 1 l , 20  1 0 

Request to Vacate Subdivision Lot Lines 
Gene W. & Stephanie 'I'aylor 

Mr. Gene Taylor has submitted a request to vacate a several property lines on Musscll 
Lane off of Ridge Road. 

The lot lines to be vacated are located between Parcels 030A2-1-B- 25.26 and 27. 

I have revicwcd the at~achments and have found no violations of current zoning. 

Please advise of the date for this public hearing so H can notify Mr. Jerry West when to 
advertise in the local newspaper. 

Page 74 of 150



Page 75 of 150



Page 76 of 150



Page 77 of 150



Page 78 of 150



Page 79 of 150



Page 80 of 150



MEMO DUM 

Robed R ittcr. Town Ma~~uger 

Kca~nq I,. Lewis. Zoning Administrator 

Requcst to Vacate a Swbdiv~sHon Lot kine 
Shirley Lcwis & Marvin and Florence Wcstpal 

Mrs. Ani:a Merritt has submitted a request to %acat~: a propedy line across from 3 190 
Main Street. 

a'hc lot line to bt: vacated is locatcd bcttvecn Palceis 030A2-17-1CB ;md 038A2-1'7-D 1. 

The Board of Zoning 1lppeaIs gatc a variance to 111akc two ~~on-corkf'Om~i!~g lots t ~ ~ o r e  
non-conforming. 

Mrs. Mcrritt has rcynestcd that this matter be pEaccd om the April 5, 20 I0 agcnda. 

Please aadcisc. ildhis date is availatpic. If so 1 wit1 notif) Mrs. Mcrritt, 

Page 81 of 150



Page 82 of 150



Page 83 of 150



Page 84 of 150



Page 85 of 150



Page 86 of 150



Page 87 of 150



Page 88 of 150



Page 89 of 150



Page 90 of 150



Page 91 of 150



Page 92 of 150



 
 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

 
To:  Mayor and Town Council 
 
From:  Bill Neville, Director of Planning 
    
Date:  March 26, 2010 
 
Subject: Rezoning Application – Ettinger Parcel “E” 

 
Summary 

Phillip P. Ettinger of Alexandria, VA has submitted an application to rezone approximately 4.5 acres from 
the R-1 Residential District to the R-2 Residential District in order to expand the permitted uses of the 
property.    The Planning Commission has completed its review, held a public hearing on February 9, 
2010 and has forwarded the application to the Town Council with a recommendation for denial.  A 
second public hearing is required and is scheduled for the April 5, 2010 Town Council meeting.  
Application materials and the staff report are provided for Town Council consideration. 

 

Parcel E 

Oyster Bay I 

Oyster Bay II 

Page 93 of 150



 
 

Rezoning Application  
 

The Town of Chincoteague Application for Rezoning requests three criteria for consideration in addition 
to the guidance provided by the adopted Comprehensive Plan.  The information provided by the 
applicant is summarized below. 

1. Reason for Request 

A Zoning Map ‘correction’ for Parcel ‘E’ to the  R-2 zoning district would be consistent with R 
zoning prior to its incorporation into the Town of Chincoteague and would allow one-family 
residential lots of a similar size and character to the existing Oyster Bay subdivision. 

Potential development of two-family residential lots and other permitted uses under the R-2 
zoning district is consistent with similar adjacent properties along North Main Street that are 
zoned R-2. 

The proposed R-2 zoning would act as a transition between Oyster Bay II and the adjacent large 
R-3 zoned property. 

Owner desires greater flexibility of land use to assist in sale of the property. 

2. Proposed Use 

Supporting information that describes the proposed use was added to the application on March 
3, 2010. The applicant states his belief and intent that duplex units on this property would be 
constructed to look like large attractive single family houses with wrap around porches and 
front entrances from the porch, that this would provide more affordable housing for permanent 
residents, and that there is not a demand for more single family lots given the surplus available 
in the Oyster Bay II subdivision.  A commitment to work with the Oyster Bay II community 
regarding the use and maintenance of Hibiscus Drive was also offered. 

A concept plan illustrating the potential site development has not been provided to assist in the 
evaluation of the rezoning request. 

3. Voluntary Proffers 

The applicant has proposed a proffered contribution to Oyster Bay II Property Owners 
Association for road maintenance.  Since this would be a private agreement that does not 
involve the Town of Chincoteague, the Planning Commission determined that such a proffer 
could not be accepted or enforced by the Town.   

The Chincoteague Town Code also provides a reference (CD1:5, CDA:26 Sec. 2.142, State Code 15.2-
2286(7)) to assist in reviewing a rezoning application for this property.  The proposed change may occur 
whenever the public necessity, convenience, general welfare, or good zoning practice requires such a 
change.    

Page 94 of 150



 
 

Planning Commission Review 
 

The Planning Commission worked to resolve all outstanding issues prior to making a recommendation to 
the Town Council.  Planning staff has coordinated with the Applicant and the Town Attorney to provide 
information about the 4 main issues as follows: 

1. Removal of the property from Oyster Bay subdivision through the vacation of plat process , if 
necessary, to clear up the question of common ownership.  Mr. Poulson’s letter dated February 
23, 2010 concludes that the vacation of plat is totally unnecessary because Parcel E is not a 
common ownership parcel and is not subject to the Oyster Bay II covenants and restrictions.   
 
In order to maintain any rights the property may have to access Hibiscus Drive, planning staff 
does not recommend the vacation of Parcel E from the original subdivision plat. 
 

2. No covenants attached or implied from Oyster Bay II.  Mr. Poulson’s letter dated February 23, 
2010, and as clarified in his letter dated February 25, 2010, states that Parcel E is not subject to 
the Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions for Oyster Bay II because it is not one of the 
numbered ‘lots’ specifically designated.  He states that the 1975 Marriott deed of sale contains a 
standardized reference to conditions, restrictions and easements that does not otherwise bind 
the property to the Oyster Bay II covenants.   
 
This position is clearly stated through both letters. 
 

3. Access to Hibiscus Drive is established.  The statements and legal opinions of both Mr. Wessells 
and Mr. Poulson have been expressed that Parcel E would have the right of access to Hibiscus 
Drive based on the following premise: 

“When there is a division of property by an owner and there is an easement or right of 
way shown on the plat touching both parcels, both parcels would normally have access 
over any such easement or right of way unless specifically restricted.” 

This position is supported by the research and conclusions of planning staff.  The Planning 
Commission has indicated its concern for allowing additional points of safe access to North Main 
Street with the proposed increase in permitted density, and has recommended that the 
property use its frontage along Hibiscus Drive. 
 
In addition to resolving the basic question of access, it is noted that the Applicant has amended 
his application through correspondence dated March 3, 2010 to voluntarily ‘proffer’  

• Contribution toward road maintenance of Hibiscus Drive in a financial amount 
commensurate with OB II lot owners 

• Deed Restriction for Parcel E and subsequent owners to be responsible for road damage 
directly attributable to construction activity 

• Offer to work with OB II POA to incorporate selected restrictions to help maintain the 
overall integrity of the Oyster Bay Community 

 
4. Comparison of the application to the Comprehensive Plan.  The Planning Commission Staff 

Report dated March 5, 2010 has included a range of policies that should be considered along 
with the Proposed Land Use Map.  These policies recommend both the protection of existing 

Page 95 of 150



 
 

neighborhood character, and the encouragement of a variety of housing 
types/affordability/density to maintain the overall character of the Town.  The Comprehensive 
Plan may be viewed at several levels before an overall recommendation is made. 
 

 

 

 

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Planning Commission Recommendation 
 

Following consideration of these items, and agreement that the outstanding issues had been adequately 
resolved, the Planning Commission voted to forward the rezoning request for Phillip P. Ettinger – Parcel 
‘E’ to the Town Council with a recommendation for denial for the following reason: 

1. Rezoning to the R-2 district is not consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan that maps 
this property as Single Family (R-1) land use. 

The motion was approved by the majority vote of those present.  (For:  Muth, Rosenberger, Jester, 
Cherrix,  Against:  Taylor, Abstain:  Potts,  Absent:  Katsetos)   

The Plan may be viewed at the site or individual 
development project level with the idea that 
protection of the R-1 district is important 

 

 

The Plan may be viewed at the neighborhood level 
with the idea that a mix of zoning districts and 
transition between different zoning districts is 
important 

 

The Plan may be viewed at the Town wide level with 
the idea that there is a limited supply of R-1 zoning 
that should be protected, or the R-2 district has been 
applied in other areas of Town to infill properties and 
larger single parcels adjacent to the R-1 district 

Page 96 of 150



 
 

Staff Recommendation 
 

Public comment should be received and considered by the Town Council.  A public hearing has been 
advertised along with certified notices sent to all adjoining property owners as required by State Code 
Section 15.2-2204.   

Amendments to the zoning map should generally follow the guidance of the Comprehensive Plan, 
and/or should be accompanied by statements and findings regarding the unique nature of the request.  
Rezoning and new development should be well planned to include concept plans, architectural designs, 
and studies of potential impacts to the community. 

Sample motions to recommend approval, denial or continuation are provided for reference. 

Sample Motions 

1. I move to approve the rezoning request for Phillip P. Ettinger – Parcel ‘E’  for the following 
reasons: 

a. The property is similarly situated to adjacent lots along North Main Street that include a 
mix of residential zoning districts including the R-2 district, 

b. With the application of unique design and development standards, the property could 
serve as a transition between the adjacent R-1 and R-3 zoning districts, 

c. Rezoning to the R-2 district would ‘correct’ a mapping error that occurred  at the time of 
annexation into the Town 

d. other___________________________________________________ 

2. I move to deny the rezoning request for Phillip P. Ettinger – Parcel ‘E’ for the following reasons: 

a. Rezoning to the R-2 district is not consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan that 
maps this property as a part of the Oyster Bay subdivision, 

b. The proposed increase of permitted uses and density is requested without a concept 
plan for development or other information to demonstrate adequate protection of the 
public welfare and the implementation of good zoning practice 

c. other___________________________________________________ 

3. I move to postpone action on the rezoning request for Phillip P. Ettinger – Parcel ‘E’ to allow for 
the consideration of public testimony and to resolve outstanding issues including the following: 

a. ____________________ 

 

Page 97 of 150



 
 

Application Information 
 

Information provided by the applicant is attached for reference purposes. 

The applicant has stated that Parcel ‘E’ is located at the edge of the existing Oyster Bay Section 
II subdivision zoned R-1 and next to an adjoining undeveloped property zoned R-3.  If rezoned 
to the R-2 district, it would serve as a transition and buffer between the two properties.   

A brief history of the Oyster Bay subdivision was presented by the applicant who noted the 
minimum lot size of 12,000 square feet in the subdivision was unchanged when the property was 
incorporated into the Town of Chincoteague.  At that time, the subdivision was mapped as R-1 
(minimum lot size of 15,000 square feet) to reflect the deed restriction for building only single 
family detached homes.   

The applicant’s request to include the subject property in the R-2 zoning district (minimum lot 
size of 12,500 square feet) was described as consistent with the original subdivision lot size and 
similarly located with properties along North Main Street that are also zoned R-2.  An early 
proposal for Parcel ‘E’ to be used for recreation and commercial use was also described. 

The applicant has not submitted a proposed development plan, or any details of site 
improvements such as proposed building types, buffers to adjoining properties, safe means of 
access to the property in order to support the requested increase in permitted uses, or other 
studies that demonstrate the potential use of the property.    

The applicant has provided a copy of the deed of sale dated December 4, 1975 in support of the 
application stating that the property was ‘removed’ from the Oyster Bay 2 subdivision and is no 
longer community property. 

The property is located adjacent to parcels within the R-1, R-2 and R-3 zoning districts as 
illustrated on the Existing Zoning Map.  Permitted uses in the Residential districts are 
summarized below for quick reference. 

 

 

R-1 Residential R-2 Residential R-3 Residential 

Single Family Dwelling 
Limited Home Occupation 
Tourist Rental Homes 
Accessory Building/Structure 

Single Family Dwelling 
Two Family Dwelling 
Home Occupation 
Tourist Rental Homes 
Tourist Homes 
Accessory Building/Structure 

Single Family Dwelling 
Two Family Dwelling 
Mobile Home 
Home Occupation 
Tourist Rental Homes 
Tourist Homes 

Page 98 of 150



 
 

Fences 
Public Utilities 
Signs 
Parks 
Schools 
Churches 
Pony Penning Sales/Yard Sales 
 

Vacation Rental Cottages 
Boardinghouse 
Bed and Breakfast 
Rest Home 
Beauty/barber shop 
Professional Office 
Day Care Facilities 
Nursing Homes 
Municipal Facilities 
Accessory Building/Structure 
Fences 
Public Utilities 
Signs 
Recreational Parks/Playgrounds 
Schools 
Churches 
Public Piers/Boatramps 
Pony Penning Sales/Yard Sales 
Mobile Home Parks 

 

Parcel Map 

 

Page 99 of 150



 
 

Aerial Photo 

 

Existing Zoning Map 

 

Parcel E 

Page 100 of 150



 
 

Comprehensive Plan 2010 
 

The Comprehensive Plan, with the accompanying maps, plats, charts, and descriptive text, shows long-
range recommendations for the general development of the Town of Chincoteague.   An evaluation of 
the Goals, Objectives and Policies of the Plan is recommended to guide the consideration of rezoning 
requests and future land development proposals.  Oyster Bay Subdivision and Parcel ‘E’ are located 
within the Single Family Residential planning area and are generally described in the Land Use and 
Housing sections of the Plan.   

The Comprehensive Plan that was adopted by the Town Council on January 4, 2010 after many 
years of public input and careful deliberation provides guidance regarding this idea.  The Plan 
identifies this parcel as Single Family Residential with a policy to apply the R-1 zoning district 
and allow detached single family use only.  Planning areas illustrated on the Comprehensive Plan 
2010 Map were generally mapped to identify areas of common land use characteristics, 
subdivisions controlled by covenants and restrictions, and to reflect public participation in the 
planning process. 

Land Use Objectives and Recommendations contained in Appendix A of the Comprehensive 
Plan support the continuation of the R-1 district along with improvements to the quality of local 
streets and pedestrian systems serving residential neighborhoods.   

Primary Goal – The Town of Chincoteague seeks to change over time in an economically and 
environmentally sustainable manner so that it retains the most endearing and unique physical 
and cultural features of the Town and provides the setting for a harmonious community life. 

Housing Goal: Preserve and protect the neighborhood character and quality of life in residential 
neighborhoods; encourage a balanced range of housing type and opportunities; promote 
opportunities for clean, safe, and affordable housing; and maintain safety, appearance, and 
harmony within neighborhoods. 

 
Land Use Objectives: 

1. Protect the quality of life in existing residential neighborhoods, while permitting 
appropriate infill and redevelopment. 

2. Promote redevelopment and infill of existing underutilized commercial areas. 
3. Ensure that all development is compatible with the scale and character of adjacent uses 

in the area. 
4. Ensure that buildings and related site improvements for private development are well 

designed and compatible with surrounding properties and districts. 
5. Provide a range of housing options to serve the long term needs of the Town. 
6. Encourage preservation of open space and environmentally responsible development. 
7. Ensure that new and existing commercial developments are attractive in appearance. 
8. Promote small to medium scale commercial and office developments. 
9. Maintain and enhance the character of existing commercial areas.  

Page 101 of 150



 
 

10. Facilitate the revitalization of the central business district and its waterfront as a center 
for commerce. 

11. Create an attractive street environment, which will compliment private and public 
properties and be comfortable for residents and visitors. 

12. Encourage site design, which preserves scenic vistas. 
 

Housing Objectives: 
1. Encourage a variety of home prices in new development or re-development projects in 

order to provide housing for people of all socioeconomic backgrounds. 
2. Encourage programs to pro-actively provide accessible and affordable housing for the 

regional work force, including working with Accomack County and other regional 
housing entities. 

3. Develop policies that support flexible housing arrangements for extended family living, 
where appropriate. 

4. Create policies that facilitate continued occupancy of personal homes by elderly 
residents, who may need “in-home” care. 

5. Encourage housing rehabilitation, redevelopment, infill, and improvement programs for 
selected areas or neighborhoods. 

6. Continue to improve housing conditions by using all available means to ensure decent, 
safe, and sanitary housing. 

 

Comprehensive Plan 2010 Map  

    

 
 
 

Parcel E 

Page 102 of 150



 
 

Land Use Plan: 
The Land Use Plan provides a policy framework for guiding future growth, development, and re-
development in the Town of Chincoteague. The Plan identifies several distinct “Land Use Planning 
Areas.” The location and delineation of each Planning Area considers existing use, established 
settlement patterns, and opportunities for growth and redevelopment.  

The Town of Chincoteague is divided into twelve (12) Land Use Planning Areas. The Land Use Plan 
identifies a broad goal and purpose for each specific Planning Area as well as objectives and 
implementation strategies to advance the community’s goals and objectives.  

SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL PLANNING AREA (Yellow) 
GOAL: Preserve existing low density residential neighborhoods and ensure that infill and 
redevelopment are consistent with the existing character of the Planning Area. 
 
The “Single-Family Residential Planning Area” encapsulates existing residential areas which are 
characterized as primarily detached single-family neighborhoods. 
 
The purpose of the Planning Area is to provide for single-family detached residences and 
supporting uses. The Planning Area is located in portions of Chincoteague where single-family 
residential development patterns are generally established and where services and facilities will 
be adequate for anticipated population.  
 
The Planning Area is intended to provide for the minor infill of existing neighborhoods, 
consistent with the existing low density residential character of the area.  The Planning Area 
includes some vacant or larger properties that could be candidate sites for infill and/or 
redevelopment projects. When infill development occurs it should be consistent with prevalent 
lot development patterns.  
 
Zoning for this area should maintain single-family residential and strictly limit non residential 
uses. Density should be maintained in accordance with historic lotting patterns. Mobile homes 
and double-wide manufactured housing are not considered appropriate for the Planning Area. 
 
Implementation Strategies  
• Continue to apply the existing R-1 Residential zoning to this Planning Area. 
• Zoning provisions for this Planning Area should limit each lot to one principal use. 
• Improve the quality of local streets and pedestrian systems serving residential 

neighborhoods, where necessary. 
• Limit permitted residential uses to detached single family units. 
• Limit new non-residential uses to low intensity home occupations.  
 
ONE & TWO FAMILY RESIDENTIAL PLANNING AREA (Orange) 
GOAL: Protect existing low to medium density residential character and ensure infill and 
redevelopment are consistent with the existing character of the Planning Area. 
 
This area is a mixture of existing single and multi-family residential uses. Much of this Planning 
Area is located near Oyster Bay and Little Oyster Bay. A small portion of the area is located 
adjacent to Maddox Boulevard and the Chincoteague Town Center. 

Page 103 of 150



 
 

 
The purpose of the Planning Area is to protect existing neighborhoods primarily consisting of 
one and two family dwellings. It is the Town’s intent to allow infill and redevelopment of a 
similar scale and intensity consistent with the existing character of the neighborhoods. 
 
The security of these property assets is crucial to homeowners in terms of quality of life and 
stable property values. The unique features of the Planning Area are essential characteristics of 
Chincoteague, being attractive to residents and visitors alike.  
 
Implementation strategies should include measures to protect the existing low to medium 
residential character and ensure that new construction, re-development, infill development, and 
structural additions reflect development patterns already present. 
 
Implementation Strategies 
• Apply the existing R-2 Residential zoning to properties in the Planning Area. 
• Amend zoning provisions for this Planning Area to limit each lot to one principal use. 

 Improve the quality of local streets and pedestrian systems serving residential 
neighborhoods, where necessary. 

• Permit existing non-residential uses to continue but not expand.  
• Strictly limit new non-residential uses to low intensity home occupations. 

 
Housing Policy: 
The price of homes in Chincoteague has risen dramatically over the past several years and is generally 
higher than in most other Eastern Shore towns in Virginia. One frequently expressed concern among 
current residents is that many young people cannot afford to live in the Town. In recent years, a growing 
concern by community business interests is the provision of housing at costs that satisfy the needs of 
residents that earn their living as part of the community work force.   

Implementation Strategies 
The primary need, with respect to housing on Chincoteague, is the provision of affordable 
housing. The increase in real estate and housing values in recent years will challenge the 
community in its efforts to address affordable housing, more so than in the past.   
 
Meeting those challenges will require use of more than one approach to providing affordable 
housing and will require greater private sector involvement.  
 
As a general note, most of the housing strategies discussed below are hypothetical, being 
dependent on development of public sewer service that, in turn, will enable higher densities and 
more intense use of existing developed properties through infill and redevelopment. 
Increased Density  
Allowing a reduction in minimum lot sizes for single-family detached or attached housing is a 
basic technique for reducing residential development costs. Small lot developments, whether in 
a cluster or traditional "grid pattern" subdivision, increase density and the opportunity to create 
affordable housing.  It also provides more opportunity for development to avoid sensitive 
environmental areas. 
 

Page 104 of 150



 
 

Small lot developments require greater attention to site design -- the layout of streets, lots, 
mixing of lot and house sizes, variation in building setbacks and elevations, variation in exterior 
designs, and landscaping -- to enhance aesthetic appeal and to blend well with surrounding 
developments.   

Special consideration should be given to parking in small lot developments to avoid the problem 
of cars dominating the streetscape (the visual quality of the development as seen from the 
street). The maintenance of privacy will also require some attention in small lot developments. 
Use of landscaping, fences, walls, staggered setbacks, and windowless side walls, are common 
techniques used to enhance privacy in small lot and other higher-density single-family 
developments. 

Some small lot development ordinances require the use of buffers at the perimeter of small lot 
projects to lessen the visual impact from near-by larger-lot developments and to help in 
achieving neighborhood acceptance. 

Public Participation (Comprehensive Plan) 
 

A record of the concerns and contributions expressed by residents during the planning process is 
included in Appendix B of the Comprehensive Plan.  Questionnaire response #15 and #20 regarding 
residential neighborhoods and uses generally addresses architectural character and creating limits on 
multi-family and townhouse units that block water views and impact the downtown area.  There were 
no specific comments about the Oyster Bay neighborhood. 

Public Participation (Zoning Application) 
 

A public hearing was held by the Planning Commission on February 9, 2010 however  there were no 
members of the public in attendance who wished to address the Planning Commission.  Three emails 
were received at the Town Office regarding this case: 

• Tim and Mary Landolt (adjacent lot owner) 
• David Hudgins (Oyster Bay II board of directors) 
• Buford Rowland (President Oyster Bay II board of directors) through Phillip Ettinger 

 

 Comments included questions regarding notification of the hearing, differences between R-1 and R-2 
permitted uses, type of housing proposed and whether access to Hibiscus is proposed.  Access to 
Hibiscus Drive was identified as the main unresolved concern. 

 
 
 
 

Page 105 of 150



 
 

Attachments 
 

 Rezoning Application Form 

 Copy of Deed of Sale 

 Letter from Applicant’s attorney 

 Letters from Town Attorney  

 Correspondence with Applicant 

 Email from Oyster Bay Property Owner’s Association 

Page 106 of 150



Page 107 of 150



Page 108 of 150



Page 109 of 150



Page 110 of 150



Page 111 of 150



Page 112 of 150



Page 113 of 150



Page 114 of 150



Page 115 of 150



Page 116 of 150



Page 117 of 150



Page 118 of 150



Page 119 of 150



Page 120 of 150



Page 121 of 150



Page 122 of 150



Page 123 of 150



Page 124 of 150



Page 125 of 150



Page 126 of 150



Page 127 of 150



Page 128 of 150



Page 129 of 150



Page 130 of 150



Page 131 of 150



Page 132 of 150



Page 133 of 150



Page 134 of 150



Page 135 of 150



Public Works Committee Meeting 
March 2, 2010 

MINUTES 
 
Chairman Tarr called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm. 
 
Members Present: Also Present: 

Hon John Tarr, Chairman Hon, John Jester 
Hon. Ellen Richardson Hon, Nancy Conklin 
Hon. John Howard Mr. Robert Ritter 
 Mr. Harvey Spurlock 

 Mr. and Ms. Ray Rosenberger 
 Mr. Esley Collins 

Mr. Scott Allen 
Public Participation  
 
Mr. Ray Rosenberger requested the issue of directional street signs be revisited. Mayor 
Tarr inquired as to the status of the directional sign to be installed at the foot of the new 
bridge. Mr. Ritter stated Massey Design was currently developing a design. 
 
Mr. Esley Collins inquired as how to request a water usage adjustment. Mr. Spurlock 
informed him to contact Ms. Kelly Fox for details. 
 
Mr. Scott Allen, concerned with the road conditions in Piney Island, stated an opinion the 
town should utilize the nuisance ordinance to force the owner to make repairs. Mayor 
Tarr explained the roads were the property of the Piney Island Owner’s Association. 
Mayor Tarr further explained the Town is not permitted to expend tax dollars on private 
roads. Mr. Ritter will confirm the road ownership. 
 
Ms. Richardson motioned to adopt the agenda, which was seconded by Mr. Howard. The 
motion was approved unanimously. 
 

1. January/February  2010 Report 

Mr. Spurlock provided an update to the report presented at the regular council 
meeting of March 1.  

• Public Works had procured an eleven foot snow plow from VDOT for a 
cost of $500. The mounting frame, which is currently located in Suffolk, 
VA, will be delivered by Southeastern Equipment at the time they deliver 
the recently purchased skid steer loader. 

• The Town flag has been redesigned. 

• The Public Works yard has been thoroughly cleaned and organized. 

• The eight inch water main beneath Cockle Creek Bridge has one ruptured 
section of pipe. Preparations for repairs are in progress. 

Page 136 of 150



Mr. Howard asked that the verbal commendation of VDOT employees at the 
prior night’s council meeting be formalized in the form of a letter. 

Mr. Howard requested research be conducted to determine if an easement 
exists that would permit a bike trail to connect to Maddox Blvd. in the 
vicinity of Coach’s Lane. 

Ms. Richardson asked if copies of the Ocean Blvd. Extended survey are 
available. Mr. Spurlock stated copies are available in the Public Works office. 
Mr. Ritter explained extensive fill may be required to complete the bike path. 
Mr. Howard suggested harbor dredge spoils be considered for fill material. 
Mr. Howard also suggest Mr. Gene Wayne Taylor be consulted on permit 
requirements 

2. HD Supply/Neptune Meters – Automatic meter reading presentation 

Chris Pickford and Charles Dye of HD Water Supply presented a program on 
remote reading meters. The primary justification for this type system is increased 
accuracy which leads to increased revenues from water rent. A follow on session 
with HD financial personnel is being arranged to explore feasibility. 

3. Private Roads Discussion 

The committee discussed various options for improving the maintenance of 
privately owned roads. Mayor Tarr stated the optimum solution would most 
likely be bringing the roads up to VDOT standards which would allow these 
roads to be incorporated into the VDOT Urban Maintenance Assistance Program. 

4. Drainage Study Progress  

Mr. Spurlock presented a progress report from Clark Nexsen, the Town’s storm 
water management consultant. Mr. Spurlock also explained he had been working 
with Horseshoe Dr. residents and identified Tarr Lane as a potential outfall for 
this area. Clark Nexsen has been asked to evaluate this scenario.  

5. Marsh Island Easement Request  

Mr. Spurlock presented a request from the owner of the area of Marsh Island that 
to create a utility easement that would coincide with the current location of the 
water main. Mayor Tarr reiterated the fact that the easement needed to be wide 
enough to accommodate any future repairs. The request was approved. 

6. Water Usage Adjustment Request 

Mr. Spurlock presented a water usage adjustment request from Mr. Gary Breland. 
The request was unanimously approved. 

Mr. Spurlock also presented a request from the North Accomack Little League. 
Mr. Howard emphasized the Little League is a volunteer organization and 
consideration should be given to their request. The committee was hesitant to 
approve the request as the League had been granted a request within the past five 

Page 137 of 150



years; the code specifies only one adjustment can be granted within a five year 
period. Ultimately the decision was made for Mayor Tarr to recommend to 
council the water bill be forgiven in lieu of an annual cash donation. Mr. 
Spurlock is to work with League representatives in an attempt to minimize water 
consumption. 

7. Committee member comments  
Ms. Richardson asked if an estimate was available for the cost of extending 
the sidewalk at the foot of the new drawbridge north on Main St. to connect to 
the existing sidewalk. Mr. Spurlock provided a cost estimate of $12,000. Ms. 
Richardson expressed a desire to have this work done dependent on funding. 
 
Mr. Howard stated the addition of sidewalks on Chicken City Rd. would 
greatly enhance the safety of pedestrians in this area. 
 
Mayor Tarr requested maintenance be performed on the Memorial Park 
baseball infield. The committee also discussed removing a section of the 
outfield fence to facilitate the installation of volleyball courts. 
 
Mr. Howard asked that the dried dredge spoils at Curtis Merritt harbor be stock 
piled prior to the introduction of additional spoils. 

 
Ms. Richardson motioned to adjourn the meeting at 7:45 pm, which was seconded by 
Mayor Tarr and approved unanimously.  
 
The next meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, May 4, 2010 at 5:00 pm. 

 

Page 138 of 150



MINUTES OF THE MARCH 9, 2010 
BUDGET AND PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
Members Present:
Nancy B. Conklin, Chairwoman 
John Nelson Jester 
James T. Frese 
 
In Attendance:  Town Manager Robert Ritter 
     Mr. Ray Rosenberger   
 
Call to Order. 
Chairwoman Conklin called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.   
 
Public Participation 
No one was present for the public participation portion of the meeting. 
 
Agenda Adoption 
Vice Mayor Jester moved, seconded by Councilman Frese, to adopt the agenda as 
presented.  The vote was unanimous. 
 
1. REVIEW OF THE PERSONNEL POLICY HANDBOOK 
Town Manager Ritter stated that he purchased a book written by Joseph W.R. Lawson II, 
titled “HOW TO DEVELOP AN EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK”.  The book includes a 
checklist of items that may or may not be included our handbook.   
 
The Committee went through the checklist deciding which items they would like to 
include in the personnel policy handbook that are not already included.   
 
Town Manager Ritter would also like to get input from the other supervisors to make sure 
nothing is missing. 
 
2. Committee Member Comments 
There were no comments. 
 
 
Adjourn
Councilman James Frese made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Vice Mayor Jester. 
The vote was unanimous and the meeting was adjourned. 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 

G:\R Ritter\Council Agenda\04.05.10 Packet\B&P Minutes 03-09-10.Doc 
 

Page 139 of 150



 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

 
To:  Mayor and Town Council 
 
Via:  Robert Ritter, Town Manager 
 
From:  William Neville, Director of Planning 
 
Date:  March 17, 2010 
 
Subject: Planning Commission By-laws 

 
 
The Planning Commission has recently completed a review of By-laws to align them 
with current operating procedures, meeting times, and State Code provisions.  At their 
regular meeting on March 9, 2010, the By-laws were approved by the Commission 
subject to review and confirmation by the Town Council.  The document is attached for 
Council review.  Although formal action is not required, the Commission was encouraged 
to seek the approval of Council in the interest of maintaining a good working 
relationship.   

 
The major changes included clarification of the role of the Planning Commission as an 
advisory body to the Town Council and removal of the sub-committee section because of 
the staff support now provided by the Town Planner.  Other revisions were limited to 
meeting times, election of officers in February, and determination of a quorum.

Page 140 of 150



 
By-Laws  

Chincoteague Planning Commission 
(Approved by PC on 3.9.10) 

 
ARTICLE 1 – OBJECTIVES 

 
1-1. This Commission, established in conformance with the resolution adopted by the 

Chincoteague Town Council on May 16, 2002, hereby adopts the 
 following Articles in order to facilitate its powers and duties in accordance with 
 the provisions of Title 15.2, Chapter 22, Article 2 of the Code of Virginia, as  
amended. 

 
1-2. The official title of this Commission shall be “The Chincoteague Planning 

Commission”. 
 
1-3. The Planning Commission shall promote the orderly development of the Town of 

Chincoteague and shall serve primarily in an advisory capacity to the Town 
Council. 

 
ARTICLE 2 – MEMBERS 

 
2-1. Said commission shall consist of seven (7) members, one of whom shall be a 

member of the Town Council, and the remaining six (6) hereafter referred to as 
appointed members.  Such members shall be permanent residents of the locality 
and be a minimum 50% owner of real property in the Town of Chincoteague. 

 
2-2. The term of the member representing the Town Council shall in all cases 

correspond to their tenure of office.  Of the other members first appointed, one (1) 
shall be appointed for a term of one (1) year, one (1) shall be appointed for a term 
of two (2) years, one (1) shall be appointed for a term of three (3) years, and one 
(1) shall be appointed for a term of four (4) years, from and after the effective 
date of this resolution.  Their successors shall be appointed for terms of four (4) 
years.  Any vacancy in membership shall be filled by an appointment by the 
Council and such appointment, in the case of an appointed member, shall be for 
the unexpired term.  Any appointed member may be removed by the Council for 
inefficiency, neglect of duty or malfeasance in office, provided that such removal 
may be made only after a public hearing at which said member is given an 
opportunity to appear and be heard on the charges against him. 

 
2-3. The term of a Commission member shall expire on December 31 at which  

meeting his successor’s term of office shall begin. 
 
 

Page 141 of 150



ARTICLE 3 – OFFICERS AND THEIR SELECTION 
 

3-1. The officers of the Planning Commission shall consist of a Chairperson, a Vice- 
Chairperson and a Secretary.  

 
3-2. Nomination of officers shall be made from the floor at the regular February 

meeting each year.  Election of officers shall follow immediately. 
 
3-3. A candidate receiving a majority vote of the entire membership of the Planning 

Commission shall be declared elected.  Such candidate shall take office 
 immediately and serve for one (1) year or until his/her successor shall take office. 

 
3-4 Vacancies in office shall be filled immediately by Town Council appointment. 

 
ARTICLE 4 – DUTIES OF OFFICERS 

 
4-1 The Chairperson shall be a member of the Commission and shall: 
 
4-1-2 Preside at all meetings. 
 
4-1-3 Rule on all procedural questions (subject to a reversal by a two-thirds (2/3) 

majority vote by the members present.) 
 
4-1-4. Be informed immediately of any official communication and report same at the 

next regular meeting. 
 
4-1-5. Carry out other duties as assigned by the Commission. 
 
4-2. The Vice-Chairperson shall be a member of the Commission and shall: 
 
4-2-1. Act in the absence or inability of the Chairperson to act. 
 
4-2-2. Have power to function in the same capacity as the Chairperson in cases of the 

Chairperson’s inability to act. 
 
4-3. The Secretary shall: 
 
4-3-1. Keep a written record of all business transacted by the Commission. 
 
4-3-2. Notify all members of all meetings. 
 
4-3-3. Keep a file of all official records and reports of the Commission. 
 
4-3-4. Certify all maps, records, and reports of the Commission. 
 
4-3-5. Give notice of all hearings and public meetings. 

Page 142 of 150



 
4-3-6. Attend to the correspondence of the Commission. 
 
4-3-7. Prepare and be responsible for the publishing of advertisements relating to public 

hearings. 
 

ARTICLE 5 – EMPLOYEES,  
CONSULTANTS, SPECIAL S TUDIES 

 
5-1 Upon request of the Planning Commission, the Town Council or other public 

officials may, from time to time, for the purpose of special studies under the 
direction of the Commission, assign or detail to it any members of the staffs of 
municipal administrative departments, or may direct any such department 
employee to make for the Commission special surveys or studies requested by the 
Commission. 

 
5-1-1. In addition, the Commission may establish, upon authorization by the Town 

Council, an advisory committee or committees to provide unique expertise and 
public participation of community representatives and to assist in meeting the 
purpose and objectives of the Commission for the preparation of special surveys 
and studies.  The Planning Commission shall establish a mission statement, work 
plan and timeline for completion of any sub-committee created. 

 
 
5-2. The Chairperson shall be an ex officio member of every sub-committee. 

 
5-3. The Planning Commission shall make recommendations and an annual report to 

the Town Council concerning the operation of the Commission and the status of 
Planning within its jurisdiction, and may prepare, publish and distribute reports, 
ordinances and other material relating to its activities. 

 
 ARTICLE 6 – MEETINGS 

 
6-1. Regular meetings of the Commission shall be held on the second Tuesday of each 

month at 7:00 p.m. excluding the months of July and December.  When a meeting 
falls on a legal holiday, the meeting shall be on the day following unless 
otherwise designated by the Commission. Such meetings must be held in a public 
building. 

 
6-2 Special meetings shall be called at the request of the Chairperson or at the request 

of a quorum of the membership. 
 
6-3 All regular meetings, hearings, records, and accounts shall be open to the public. 
 
6-4 A majority of the membership of the Commission shall constitute a quorum.  The 

number of votes necessary to transact business shall be a majority of the members 

Page 143 of 150



present.  Voting may be by roll call, in which case a record shall be kept as a part 
of the minutes. 

 
ARTICLE 7 – ORDER OF BUSINESS 

 
7-1. The order of business for a regular meeting shall be: 
 
7-1-1. Call to order by Chairperson. 
 
7-1-2. Roll call. 
 
7-1-3. Determination of a quorum. 
 
7-1-4. Invocation. 
 
7-1-5. Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
7-1-6. Public Participation 
 
7-1-7. Review of Agenda. 
 
7-1-8. Reading of Minutes.  
 
7-1-9. Old Business.  

 
7-1-10. New Business. 

 
7-1-11. Adjournment. 
 
7-2. Parliamentary procedure in Commission meetings shall be governed by Robert’s 

 Rules of Order, most current edition. 
 
7-3. The Planning Commission shall keep a set of minutes of all meetings, and these 

minutes shall become a public record. 
 

The Chairperson shall sign all minutes, and at the end of the year shall certify that 
the minutes of the preceding year are a true and correct copy. 
 

ARTICLE 8 – HEARINGS 
 

8-1. In addition to those required by law, the Commission, at its discretion, may hold 
public hearings when it decides that a hearing will be in the public interest. 

 
8-2 Notice of special hearings shall be published once a week for two successive 

weeks in a newspaper of general circulation in the area not less than five (5), nor 
more than twenty-one (21) days before the time of public hearing. 

Page 144 of 150



 
8-3 The case before the Commission shall be summarized by the Chairperson or other 

member delegated by the Chairperson.  Interested parties shall have the privilege 
of the floor.  Records or statements shall be recorded or sworn to as evidence for 
any court of law, only after notice is given to the interested parties. 

 
8-4 A record shall be kept of those speaking before the hearing. 
 

ARTICLE 9 – CORRESPONDENCE 
 

9-1. It shall be the duty of the Secretary to draft and sign all correspondence necessary 
for the execution of the duties and functions of the Planning Commission. 

 
9-2. All official papers and plans involving the authority of the Commission shall bear 

the signature of the Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson. 
 

ARTICLE 10 – AMENDMENTS 
 

10-1. These rules may be changed by a recorded two-thirds (2/3) vote of the entire 
membership of the Commission, and subject to review and confirmation by the 
Town Council after thirty (30) days notice. 

 

Page 145 of 150



MEMORANDUM 
THE TOWN OF CHINCOTEAGUE 

 
 
To:  Mayor & Town Council 
 

From:  Robert Ritter, Town Manager 
 

Date:  March 17, 2010 
 

Subject: Committee/Commission/Board Vacancy Appointments  
 
 
 
 

The term for the following member currently serving on the Building Code Board of 
Appeals elapsed on December 31, 2009: 
 

Reginald Birch, Jr. 
 

The position was advertised in the Chincoteague Beacon for two consecutive weeks prior 
to the February 1, 2010 Council meeting with no response. It was advertised again on 
March 4, 2010.  The following applicants have shown an interest in serving on the Board: 
 

Applicant: 
Nancy Lane,  3890 Main Street 
Spiro Papadopoulos, 5534 Warren Street 

 

Attached are optional questionnaires submitted by the applicants for your review. 
 

The term shall be for a period of 4 years and shall expire on December 31, 2013. 
 

Council will need to take the necessary action to replace the above member at your 
convenience.   
 
 

Page 146 of 150



Page 147 of 150



Page 148 of 150



Page 149 of 150



Page 150 of 150


	REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
	CALL TO ORDER
	INVOCATION BY COUNCILMAN T. HOWARD
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	OPEN FORUM / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
	STAFF UP-DATE
	AGENDA ADDITIONS/DELETIONS AND ADOPTION:
	1.	Consider Adoption of the Minutes
	•	Regular Council Meeting of March 1, 2010
	•	Recessed Council Meeting of March 4, 2010 
	•	Special Council Meeting of March 11, 2010
	2.	Presentation by Commander John J. Keegan
	3.	Department of Forestry on Tree City USA, Arbor Day Ceremony (Rob Lewis) 
	4.	Census Bureau Presentation and Proclamation
	5.	Public Hearing Request to Vacate Subdivision Lot Lines (Gene W. & Stephanie Taylor)
	6.	Public Hearing Request to Vacate Subdivision Lot Lines (Shirley Lewis & Marvin and Florence Westpal)   
	7.	Public Hearing on the Ettinger Parcel Rezoning	
	8.	Public Works Committee Report of March 2, 2010 (Mayor Tarr)  
	9.	Budget and Personnel Committee Report of March 9, 2010 (Councilwoman Conklin)
	10.	Review of the Planning Commissions By-Laws 
	11.	Appointment of the Building Code of Appeals
	12.	Mayor & Council Announcements or Comments 
	ADJOURN:

